


mailto:dmcinnes@vestapropertyservices.com


  

RADIANCE Community Development District 
Meeting Date: Monday, August 26, 2024 Call-in Number: +1 (929) 205-6099 
Time: 11:00AM Meeting ID: 705 571 4830# 
Location: Hilton Garden Inn 

55 Town Center Blvd., 
Palm Coast, FL 32164 

Agenda 

I. Roll Call 
II. Audience Comments – (limited to 3 minutes per individual for 

agenda items) 
III. Consent Agenda 

A. Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of Exhibit 1 
Supervisors Regular Meeting Held on June 24, 2024 Pgs. 6-9 

B. Consideration for Acceptance – The June 2024 Unaudited Exhibit 2 
Financial Statements Pgs. 11-17 

C. Consideration for Acceptance – The July 2024 Unaudited Exhibit 3 
Financial Statements Pgs. 19-25 

D. Ratification of Construction Funding Agreement (Offsite Utility Exhibit 4 
Project) Pgs. 27-31 

E. Ratification of Project Management Agreement Exhibit 5 
Pgs. 33-41 

IV. Public Hearing 
A. Presentation of Public Notices Exhibit 6 

Pgs. 43-44 
B. FY 2025 Budget Public Hearing 

1. Open the Public Hearing 
2. Presentation of FY 2024-2025 Budget Exhibit 7 

Pg. 46 
3. Public Comments 
4. Close the Public Hearing 
5. Consideration & Adoption of Resolution 2024-05, Adopting Exhibit 8 

Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Pgs. 48-50 
C. Consideration of FY 2025 Deficit Funding Agreement Exhibit 9 

Pgs. 52-54 
V. Business Matters 

A. Consideration & Adoption of Resolution 2024-06, Approving Exhibit 10 
Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Meeting Schedule Pgs. 56-57 

B. Presentation & Consideration of FY 2025 Performance Standards Exhibit 11 
& Measures Pgs. 59-60 

Page 1 of 2 







mailto:PublicRecords@vestapropertyservices.com






    
     

     

   
     

     
     

     
  

   

         
   

  

  

  

   

  

   

                      

Radiance CDD June 24, 2024 
Regular Meeting Page 4 of 4 

106 NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Adjournment 

107 Mr. McInnes asked for final questions, comments, or corrections before requesting a motion to 
108 adjourn the meeting. There being none, Mr. Frye made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 

109 On a MOTION by Mr. Frye, SECONDED by Ms. Kiernan, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board adjourned 
110 the meeting, at 12:09 p.m., for the Radiance Community Development District. 

111 *Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered 
112 at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, 
113 including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 

114 Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed 
115 meeting held on August 26, 2024. 

116 

117 

118 

Signature Signature 

119 

Printed Name Printed Name 

120 Title: □ Secretary □ Assistant Secretary Title: □ Chairman □ Vice Chairman 













https://84,869.80
https://85,496.51


https://1,801.71
https://2,468.15
https://4,269.86
https://3,774.81
https://2,176.64
https://2,935.01
https://3,151.01
https://3,752.46
https://2,896.46
https://6,067.84


                     

                     
                                         

 

                     
                                         

02/16/2024 1548 Vesta District Services 1,175.00 626.71 

02/16/2024 1549 VGlobal Tech Website Maintenance Feb 131.66 495.05 

2/29/2024 3,774.81 7,032.22 495.05 
03/18/2024 00013430 Kolter Group Acquisitions LLC 2,402.73 2,897.78 

03/19/2024 1550 Kimley Horn Engineering Services 889.10 2,008.68 

03/19/2024 1551 Kutak Rock LLP 371.50 1,637.18 

03/19/2024 1552 Vesta District Services 1,010.47 626.71 

03/19/2024 1553 VGlobal Tech Website Maintenance March 131.66 495.05 

3/31/2024 2,402.73 2,402.73 495.05 
4/30/2024 - - 495.05 

05/28/2024 00017603 Kolter Group Acquisitions LLC 1,771.66 2,266.71 

05/28/2024 1554 Kutak Rock LLP 640.00 1,626.71 

05/28/2024 1555 Vesta District Services District Management Services May 2024 1,000.00 626.71 

05/28/2024 1556 VGlobal Tech Website Maintenance May 131.66 495.05 

05/28/2024 1,771.66 1,771.66 495.05 
6/30/2024 - - 495.05 

https://7,032.22
https://3,774.81
https://1,175.00












https://1,096.50
https://84,869.80
https://85,496.51


https://1,801.71
https://2,468.15
https://4,269.86
https://3,774.81
https://2,176.64
https://2,935.01
https://3,151.01
https://3,752.46
https://2,896.46
https://6,067.84


                     

                     
                                         

 

                     
                                         

                               

02/16/2024 1548 Vesta District Services 1,175.00 626.71 

02/16/2024 1549 VGlobal Tech Website Maintenance Feb 131.66 495.05 

2/29/2024 3,774.81 7,032.22 495.05 
03/18/2024 00013430 Kolter Group Acquisitions LLC 2,402.73 2,897.78 

03/19/2024 1550 Kimley Horn Engineering Services 889.10 2,008.68 

03/19/2024 1551 Kutak Rock LLP 371.50 1,637.18 

03/19/2024 1552 Vesta District Services 1,010.47 626.71 

03/19/2024 1553 VGlobal Tech Website Maintenance March 131.66 495.05 

3/31/2024 2,402.73 2,402.73 495.05 
4/30/2024 - - 495.05 

05/28/2024 00017603 Kolter Group Acquisitions LLC 1,771.66 2,266.71 

05/28/2024 1554 Kutak Rock LLP 640.00 1,626.71 

05/28/2024 1555 Vesta District Services District Management Services May 2024 1,000.00 626.71 

05/28/2024 1556 VGlobal Tech Website Maintenance May 131.66 495.05 

05/28/2024 1,771.66 1,771.66 495.05 
6/30/2024 - - 495.05 

07/08/2024 00019240 Kolter Group Acquisitions LLC 601.45 1,096.50 

7/31/2024 601.45 - 1,096.50 

https://1,096.50
https://1,096.50
https://7,032.22
https://3,774.81
https://1,175.00
























Docusign Envelope ID: 6D2688AB-D198-4C73-9D94-656670F970E0 

7.2 Project Manager Insurance. Project Manager shall obtain, at its sole cost, the following 
insurance for the services to be provided by it and its personnel, contractors, subcontractors, agents and 
assigns, pursuant to this Agreement. Project Manager shall have the insurance described in the below 
subsections (i), (iv), and (v) in place at the time of execution of this Agreement and shall obtain the 
insurance described in subsections (ii), and (iii) before the commencement of vertical construction of the 
Project. Such insurance shall name the District as an additional insured unless otherwise stated herein: 

(i) Workers' or Workmen's Compensation in statutory limits - claims under 
Workers' or Workmen's Compensation, disability benefit and other similar employee 
benefit laws that are applicable to the work to be performed (the Workers' or Workmen's 
Compensation policy shall not name the District as an additional insured); 

(ii) Commercial general liability, including contractual liability, with limits of 
not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000} per occurrence bodily injury and property 
damage, and not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000} in the aggregate. Commercial 
General Liability Insurance required under this paragraph shall be written on an 
occurrence basis. 

(iii) Excess liability insurance in umbrella form with limit of $5,000,000 per 
occurrence. 

(iv) Comprehensive automobile liability insurance covering the use and 
maintenance of owned, non-owned, hired and rented vehicles with combined single limit 
of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000}. A policy period inception date of not later than the 
anticipated work under the Agreement, expiring upon completion of the services to be 
provided hereunder. 

(v) Fidelity insurance for employees of the Project Manager who handle or 
are responsible for funds of the Owner shall be covered by fidelity insurance with limit of 
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000} aggregate. 

The above policies may be carried under a "blanket" policy or policies covering other properties or projects 
for which Project Manager provides similar services to those provided herein, provided that limits are 
allocated to each property or project. 

7.3 
requirements: 

General Requirements. All insurance under this Section 7 shall meet the following 

(i) Certificates of Insurance. The Project Manager shall provide a certificate 
evidencing the insurance coverages required by this Section 7 prior to the 
commencement of any activity or operation that could give rise to a loss to be covered by 
such insurance. The certificate shall state that at least 30 days' notice shall be given to 
and prior to the termination or cancellation of any policy evidenced thereby, except for 
ten (10) days for non-payment of premium. Replacement certificates shall be sent as 
policies are renewed, replaced or modified. 

5 



Docusign Envelope ID: 6D2688AB-D198-4C73-9D94-656670F970E0 

7.4 Waivers. The District and Project Manager waive all rights against each other and their 
respective indemnities covered under this Agreement, for damages caused by fire or other perils to the 
extent covered by insurance obtained or required to be obtained pursuant to this Agreement, except 
rights that they may have to the proceeds of such insurance held by the insuring party. Insurance policies 
shall be endorsed to include such waivers of subrogation. No waiver of any breach of any term or 
condition of this Agreement shall be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of any term or 
condition of a like or different nature. 

7.5 Immunity. The Project Manager agrees that nothing in this Agreement shall constitute 
or be construed as a waiver of the District's limitations on liability set forth in Section 768.28, Florida 
Statutes, and other applicable law. 

7.6 Applicable Law. This Agreement, and the rights and interests and obligations of the 
District and the Project Manager hereunder, shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Florida. 

7.7 Prevailing Party. If it should become necessary for either of the parties to resort to legal 
action, the non-prevailing party shall pay all reasonable legal fees and other expenses incurred by the 
prevailing party, including, but not limited to, attorneys' and paralegals' fees of in-house and/or outside 
counsel at all judicial levels. 

7.8 Entire Agreement. This Agreement is the entire agreement of the parties with respect to 
the subject matter contained herein. 

7.9 No Modification. No modification to this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and 
signed by the parties. 

7.10 Public Records. The Project Manager understands and agrees that all documents of any 
kind provided in connection with the work contemplated under this Agreement may be public records 
and may be treated as such in accordance with Florida law. 

7.11 Unenforceability. If any provisions of this Agreement shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not, if possible, affect the validity or enforceability 
of any other provision of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall, if possible, be construed in all respects 
as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were omitted. 

7.12 Survival of Terms. The terms, conditions, obligations and covenants in this Agreement 
shall survive its execution by the parties hereto and the consummation of the transactions between the 
parties contemplated herein. 

7.13 Captions. The captions used herein are inserted only as a matter of convenience, and are 
not to be used in the interpretation of any provision hereof. 

7.14 Assignment. Neither the District nor the Project Manager may assign their rights or 
obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other party. 

6 



Docusign Envelope ID: 6D2688AB-D198-4C73-9D94-656670F970E0 

7.15 Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the formal parties 
hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason hereof, to or for the benefit of any 
third party not a formal party hereto. Nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall 
be construed to confer upon any person or corporation other than the parties hereto any right, remedy 
or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any provisions or conditions hereof; and all of the 
provisions, representations, covenants and conditions herein contained shall inure to the sole benefit of 
and shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors and assigns. 

7.16 Execution in Counterparts. This instrument may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which, when executed and delivered, shall constitute an original, and such 
counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and acknowledgment 
pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of the document to 
physically form one document. 

7.17 E-Verify Requirements. 

i. The Project Manager shall comply with and perform all applicable provisions of Section 
448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, Project Manager shall register with and use the 
United States Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the work 
authorization status of all newly hired employees. The District may terminate this 
Agreement immediately for cause if there is a good faith belief that the Project Manager 
has knowingly violated Section 448.091, Florida Statutes. 

ii. If the Project Manager anticipates entering into agreements with a subcontractor for 
the Work, Project Manager will not enter into the subcontractor agreement without 
first receiving an affidavit from the subcontractor regarding compliance with Section 
448.095, Florida Statutes, and stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract 
with, or subcontract with an unauthorized alien. Project Manager shall maintain a copy 
of such affidavit for the duration of the agreement and provide a copy to the District 
upon request. 

iii. In the event that the District has a good faith belief that a subcontractor has knowingly 
violated Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, but the Project Manager has otherwise 
complied with its obligations hereunder, the District shall promptly notify the Project 
Manager. The Project Manager agrees to immediately terminate the agreement with 
the subcontractor upon notice from the District. Further, absent such notification from 
the District, the Project Manager or any subcontractor who has a good faith belief that 
a person or entity with which it is contracting has knowingly violated s. 448.09(1), 
Florida Statutes, shall promptly terminate its agreement with such person or entity. 

iv. By entering into this Agreement, the Project Manager represents that no public 
employer has terminated a contract with the Project Manager under Section 
448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, within the year immediately preceding the date of this 
Agreement. 

7.18 Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in 
writing and sent by registered or certified mail, postage pre-paid, return receipt requested, or sent by 

7 



Docusign Envelope ID: 6D2688AB-D198-4C73-9D94-656670F970E0 

expedited courier service to the addresses set forth below. Any notice shall be deemed given upon 
receipt. 

District: 

With a copy to: 

Project 
Manager: 

Radiance Community Development District 
250 International Parkway, Suite 208 
Lake Mary, FL 32746 
Attention: District Manager 

Kutak Rock LLP 
107 West College Avenue 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Attention: District Counsel 

Kolter Group Acquisitions LLC 
105 NE 1st Street 
Delray Beach, FL 33444 
Attention: Justin Frye 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

8 



___ _

Docusign Envelope ID: 6D2688AB-D198-4C73-9D94-656670F970E0 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the District and the Project Manager have caused this Agreement to be 
duly executed as of the day and year first above written . 

RADIANCE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 

~~"':£' 
By: - ~ 
Na m-e-:_-_-_-_-_~_w 4,---_-_-_-_-_-_-_-~--

lts : _____ 

KOLTER GROUP ACQUISITIONS LLC 

By:--r-~t----t--c.;,,"----v-- -t-- ---...--­
Na 
Its:---- ~~-~ 

9 

~,-:_-i't_tA~-~-Wr~e~~_""'1_~~~t

c_h_a_i_r________ 



  

 

 

 

  EXHIBIT 6 



 

 
  

RADIANCE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE ADOPTION OF 

THE FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 BUDGET; NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE IMPOSITION OF 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, 
ADOPTION OF AN ASSESSMENT ROLL, AND THE LEVY, 

COLLECTION, AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE SAME; AND NOTICE OF 
REGULAR BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ MEETING.  

Upcoming Public Hearings, and Regular Meeting
The Board of Supervisors (“Board”) for the Radiance Community Develop-

ment District (“District”) will hold the following two public hearings and a 
regular meeting on Monday, August 26, 2024 at 11:00 a.m., at the Hilton 
Garden Inn – 55 Town Center Blvd., Palm Coast, FL 32164.  
The first public hearing is being held pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
to receive public comment and objections on the District’s proposed budget 
(“Proposed Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2024 and ending 
September 30, 2025 (“Fiscal Year 2024/2025”). The second public hearing is 
being held pursuant to Chapters 190, 197, and/or 170, Florida Statutes, to con-
sider the imposition of operations and maintenance special assessments (“O&M 
Assessments”) upon the lands located within the District, to fund the Proposed 
Budget for Fiscal Year 2024/2025; to consider the adoption of an assessment 
roll; and, to provide for the levy, collection, and enforcement of assessments. 
At the conclusion of the hearings, the Board will, by resolution, adopt a budget 
and levy O&M Assessments as finally approved by the Board. A Board meeting 
of the District will also be held where the Board may consider any other District 
business. 

Description of Assessments
The District imposes O&M Assessments on benefitted property within the Dis-

trict for the purpose of funding the District’s general administrative, operations, 
and maintenance budget. A geographic depiction of the property potentially sub-
ject to the proposed O&M Assessments is identified in the map attached hereto. 
The table below shows the schedule of the proposed O&M Assessments, which 
are subject to change at the hearing: 

The O&M Assessments may be collected on the County tax roll or by direct bill 
from the District’s Manager.  The O&M Assessments will only be imposed on lots 
sold to third parties, including lots sold during the Fiscal Year 2024/2025, and 
any portion of the District’s Proposed Budget not funded by the O&M Assess-
ments will be funded by a developer funding agreement.  Note that the O&M 
Assessments are in addition to any debt service assessments, if any, previously 
levied by the District and due to be collected for Fiscal Year 2024/2025.  IT 
IS IMPORTANT TO PAY YOUR ASSESSMENT BECAUSE FAILURE TO 
PAY WILL CAUSE A TAX CERTIFICATE TO BE ISSUED AGAINST THE 
PROPERTY WHICH MAY RESULT IN LOSS OF TITLE, OR FOR DIRECT 
BILLED ASSESSMENTS, MAY RESULT IN A FORECLOSURE ACTION, 
WHICH ALSO MAY RESULT IN A LOSS OF TITLE.  

Additional Provisions 
The public hearings and meeting are open to the public and will be conducted 

in accordance with Florida law.  A copy of the Proposed Budget and assessment 
roll, and the agenda, for the hearings and meeting may be obtained by contacting 
DPFG Management & Consulting LLC, 250 International Parkway, Suite 208, 
Lake Mary, Florida 32746, 321-263-0132 (“District Manager’s Office”). The 
public hearings and meeting may be continued to a date, time, and place to be 
specified on the record.  There may be occasions when staff or board members 
may participate by speaker telephone.  Any person requiring special accommo-
dations because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the District 
Manager’s Office at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting.  If you are 
hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service by dialing 
7-1-1, or 1-800-955-8771 (TTY) / 1-800-955-8770 (Voice), for aid in contacting 
the District Manager’s Office. 

Please note that all affected property owners have the right to appear and com-
ment at the public hearings and meeting, and may also file written objections 
with the District Manager’s Office within twenty (20) days of issuance of this 
notice. Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with 
respect to any matter considered at the public hearings or meeting is advised 
that person will need a record of proceedings and that accordingly, the person 
may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including 
the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based.  If you have 
any questions, please do not hesitate to contact the District Manager’s Office. 
District Manager 

Aug. 1, 2024  24-00309F 



 

 

 

        

RADIANCE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO 
CONSIDER THE ADOPTION OF THE 
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 BUDGET(S); 
AND NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD 

OF SUPERVISORS’ MEETING.  
The Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of 

the Radiance Community Development 
District (“District”) will hold a public 
hearing on Monday, August 26, 2024, at 
11:00 a.m., at Hilton Garden Inn – 55 
Town Center Blvd, Palm Coast, FL 32164 
for the purpose of hearing comments and 
objections on the adoption of the proposed 
budget(s) (“Proposed Budget”) of the Dis-
trict for the fscal year beginning October 
1, 2024 and ending September 30, 2025 
(“Fiscal Year 2024/2025”). A regular 
board meeting of the District will also be 
held at that time where the Board may con-
sider any other business that may properly 
come before it. A copy of the agenda and 
Proposed Budget may be obtained at the 
ofces of the District Manager, c/o DPFG 
Management & Consulting LLC, 250 In-
ternational Parkway, Suite 208, Lake Mary, 
Florida 32746, 321-263-0132 (“District 
Manager’s Ofce”), during normal busi-
ness hours, or by visiting the District’s web-
site at https://www.radiancecdd.com/. 

The public hearing and meeting are open 
to the public and will be conducted in ac-
cordance with the provisions of Florida 
law.  The public hearing and meeting may 
be continued to a date, time, and place to 
be specifed on the record at the meeting. 
There may be occasions when Board Su-
pervisors or District Staf may participate 
by speaker telephone.  

Any person requiring special accommo-
dations at this meeting because of a disabil-
ity or physical impairment should contact 
the District Manager’s Ofce at least forty-
eight (48) hours prior to the meeting.  If 
you are hearing or speech impaired, please 
contact the Florida Relay Service by dialing 
7-1-1, or 1-800-955-8771 (TTY) / 1-800-
955-8770 (Voice), for aid in contacting the 
District Manager’s Ofce. 

Each person who decides to appeal any 
decision made by the Board with respect to 
any matter considered at the public hearing 
or meeting is advised that person will need 
a record of proceedings and that accord-
ingly, the person may need to ensure that a 
verbatim record of the proceedings is made, 
including the testimony and evidence upon 
which such appeal is to be based. 
District Manager 
Aug. 8, 2024  24-00316F 

https://www.radiancecdd.com


  

 

 

 

  EXHIBIT 7 



   

                                 

                                                               

                                       

                                               

                                           

                                           

                                           

                                               

                                               

                                           

                                           

                                                      

                                                      

                                           

                                                      

                                               

                                                      

                                               

                                               

                                       

                                           

                                           

                                       

                                                         

 

RADIANCE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 PROPOSED BUDGET 

GENERAL FUND, OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE (O&M) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

FY 2024 

ADOPTED 

FY 2025 

PROPOSED 

VARIANCE 

FY24 - FY25 

REVENUES: 

LANDOWNER CONTRIBUTION 

LOT CLOSINGS (SPRINGING ASSESSMENTS) 

$ 179,155 

-

$ 179,155 

-

$ -

-

TOTAL REVENUES: 179,155 179,155 -

EXPENDITURES: 

PROFESSIONAL & ADMINISTRATIVE 

SUPERVISORS FEES 2,400 2,400 -
1

DISTRICT MANAGEMENT 20,000 20,000 -
1

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 12,750 12,750 -
1

ACCOUNTING SERVICES 12,750 12,750 -
1

ASSESSMENT ADMINISTRATION 2,500 2,500 -

DISSEMINATION AGENT 2,000 2,000 -

LEGAL 25,000 25,000 -

ENGINEERING 30,000 30,000 -

POSTAGE 500 500 -

PRINTING AND BINDING 500 500 -

LEGAL ADVERTISING 10,000 10,000 -

ANNUAL SPECIAL DISTRICT FEE 175 175 -

GENERAL LIABILITY & POL INSURANCE 7,000 7,000 -

BANK FEES 500 500 -

WEBSITE HOSTING, ADA, MAINTENANCE 1,580 1,580 -

CONTINGENCY 1,500 1,500 -

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 129,155 129,155 -

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT 

FIELD CONTINGENCY 50,000 50,000 -

TOTAL PHYSICAL ENVIORNMENT 50,000 50,000 -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 179,155 179,155 -

TOTAL REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES $ - $ - $ -

Footnote: 

1. Total of $1,000/per month until Bond issuance, thereafter $4,000/month. 

Page 1 of 1 



  

 

 

 

  EXHIBIT 8 



  
 

  
 

   
  

        
 

 
 
     

   
   

        
     

 
       

     
  

 
        

   
 

 
  

 
  

  
  

  
 
   

   
  

 
    
 

 
   
 

     
   

 
 

      
  

   

RESOLUTION 2024-05 

[ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION] 

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE RADIANCE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) RELATING TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS 
AND ADOPTING THE BUDGET(S) FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2024, 
AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2025; AUTHORIZING BUDGET AMENDMENTS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the District Manager has, prior to the fifteenth (15th) day in June, 2024, submitted to 
the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Radiance Community Development District (“District”) 
proposed budget(s) (“Proposed Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2024 and ending 
September 30, 2025 (“Fiscal Year 2024/2025”) along with an explanatory and complete financial plan for 
each fund of the District, pursuant to the provisions of Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, at least sixty (60) days prior to the adoption of the Proposed Budget, the District filed 
a copy of the Proposed Budget with the local governing authorities having jurisdiction over the area 
included in the District pursuant to the provisions of Section 190.008(2)(b), Florida Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, the Board set a public hearing thereon and caused notice of such public hearing to be 
given by publication pursuant to Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, the District Manager posted the Proposed Budget on the District’s website at least two 
days before the public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes, requires that, prior to October 1st of each year, 
the Board, by passage of the Annual Appropriation Resolution, shall adopt a budget for the ensuing fiscal 
year and appropriate such sums of money as the Board deems necessary to defray all expenditures of the 
District during the ensuing fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, the District Manager has prepared a Proposed Budget, whereby the budget shall 
project the cash receipts and disbursements anticipated during a given time period, including reserves for 
contingencies for emergency or other unanticipated expenditures during the fiscal year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE RADIANCE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

SECTION 1. BUDGET 

a. The Board has reviewed the Proposed Budget, a copy of which is on file with the office of 
the District Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office, and hereby approves 
certain amendments thereto, as shown in Section 2 below. 

b. The Proposed Budget, attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” as amended by the Board, is hereby 
adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes 
(“Adopted Budget”), and incorporated herein by reference; provided, however, that the 



  
   

 
     

 
  

 
 

   
  

   
 

   
 
     

   
        

      
  
   
 
     

     
 

 
     

  
  

 
        

     
    

 
          

 
 

      

 
     

  
   

 
       

 
  

 

comparative figures contained in the Adopted Budget may be subsequently revised as 
deemed necessary by the District Manager to reflect actual revenues and expenditures. 

c. The Adopted Budget, as amended, shall be maintained in the office of the District 
Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office and identified as “The Budget for the 
Radiance Community Development District for the Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 
2025.” 

d. The Adopted Budget shall be posted by the District Manager on the District’s official 
website within thirty (30) days after adoption, and shall remain on the website for at least 
2 years. 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATIONS 

There is hereby appropriated out of the revenues of the District, for Fiscal Year 2024/2025, the 
sums set forth in Exhibit A to be raised by the levy of assessments, a funding agreement and/or otherwise.  
Such sums are deemed by the Board to be necessary to defray all expenditures of the District during said 
budget year, and are to be divided and appropriated in the amounts set forth in Exhibit A. 

SECTION 3. BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

Pursuant to Section 189.016, Florida Statutes, the District at any time within Fiscal Year 2024/2025 
or within 60 days following the end of the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 may amend its Adopted Budget for that 
fiscal year as follows: 

a. A line-item appropriation for expenditures within a fund may be decreased or increased 
by motion of the Board recorded in the minutes, and approving the expenditure, if the 
total appropriations of the fund do not increase. 

b. The District Manager or Treasurer may approve an expenditure that would increase or 
decrease a line-item appropriation for expenditures within a fund if the total 
appropriations of the fund do not increase and if either (i) the aggregate change in the 
original appropriation item does not exceed the greater of $15,000 or 15% of the original 
appropriation, or (ii) such expenditure is authorized by separate disbursement or 
spending resolution. 

c. Any other budget amendments shall be adopted by resolution and consistent with Florida 
law. 

The District Manager or Treasurer must ensure that any amendments to the budget under 
paragraph c. above are posted on the District’s website within 5 days after adoption and remain on the 
website for at least 2 years. 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE] 



 

 
   

 
 

 
 
 

      
 

  
 
 

       
       

 
 

    
        

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 26th DAY OF AUGUST, 2024. 

ATTEST: RADIANCE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By: 
By: Its: 
Title: ____________________________ 

Exhibit A: Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Budget(s) 



  

 

 

 

  EXHIBIT 9 















  

 

 

 

  EXHIBIT 11 






	Agenda
	Exhibit 1
	Minutes

	Exhibit 2
	June 2024

	Exhibit 3
	July 2024

	Exhibit 4
	Construction Funding Agreement

	Exhibit 5
	Project Management Agreement

	Exhibit 6
	Public Notices

	Exhibit 7
	FY 2024-2025 Budget

	Exhibit 8
	Resolution 2024-05

	Exhibit 9
	FY 2025 Deficit Funding Agreement

	Exhibit 10
	Resolution 2024-06

	Exhibit 11
	FY 2025 Performance Standards& Measures



	rta: 


